QUESTIONS/COMMENTS AND ANSWERS #4 FOR INTEGRATED SAFETY DATA FOR STRATEGIC RESPONSE (ISDSR)

General:

QUESTION/COMMENT:

1. Do you have more specific target dates for issuance of the final solicitation and the proposal due date? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

1. Current Posted Dates are: Issuance of the Final Solicitation is currently scheduled for                    Mid-March 2005.  Proposals Due April 2005 (Note:  30 day response time for receipt of proposals from the date of issuance of the final solicitation).

QUESTION/COMMENT:

2. Do you consider this a mission contract or a task order contract?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

2. The Contracting Officer shall issue the task orders for the technical areas in accordance with NASA, Federal Acquisition Regulation Supplement (NFS) 1852.216-80, "Task Ordering Procedure.”  See H.3 TASK ORDER PROCEDURE (NFS 1852.216-80) (OCT 1996) of the Draft Solicitation posted on February 4, 2005.
QUESTION/COMMENT:

3. Which of the technical areas specified in the draft SOW do you consider R&D? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

The level of research and development will vary based on the requirements of each individual task order.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

4. Will the RFP specify a certain engineering approach?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

4. The RFP will not specify a certain engineering approach.  

QUESTION/COMMENT:

5. How will you rate the engineering approach?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

5. See Government Response 4 above.
Note: Please review Section L and Section M carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

6. The sample tasks list EITAC requirements. Will there be EITAC requirements in the final RFP? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

6. This procurement may contain a requirement for products/services subject to Section 508 of the Rehabilitation Act, Electronic and Information Technology (EIT) Accessibility.  Complete information on EIT accessibility and Section 508, is available via Internet at http://www.section508.gov.
QUESTION/COMMENT:

7. Will there be any Capability Maturity Model (CMM) or Capability Maturity Model Integration (CMMI) requirements in the RFP? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

7. No.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

8. Will there be any ISO requirements in the RFP?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

8. There will be no ISO requirement in the RFP.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

9. How similar are the sample tasks to the ones that will be included in the RFP? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

9. Sample tasks may be modified in response to feedback from the posting of the draft sample tasks.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

10. Is there overlap between the sample tasks and this year's work under ASMM? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

10. ISDSR is a new requirement. The use of the individual data sources, such as flight-recorded data and incident reports, on which ASMM research and developments have been based will continue under ISDSR. New data sources, analysis tools, information integration, and secure networking work will be required for ISDSR. The sample tasks are indicative of where new capabilities are required that may or may not build upon the work previously done under ASMM.  See the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, to understand the breadth of new research and development activities required under ISDSR.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

11. We understand that NASA is preparing the specs for a national FOQA archive. Will those specs be included in the RFP? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

11. The ISDSR contractor will be expected to activate, operate, and extend the DNFA and Distributed National Aviation Safety Action Program (ASAP) Archive (DNAA).

QUESTION/COMMENT:

12. Will the source selected be able to affect the overall system architecture and design of this national FOQA archive? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

12. No.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

13. Will the incumbent have access to any information regarding ISDSR or the National FOQA archive that will not be available to other interested parties? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

13. The incumbent will have no access to ISDSR planning that is not also available to other interested parties.  Please see Highlights document #4 and #5 for further information concerning DNFA and DNAA.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

14. Will the SDB requirements be any different for a small business prime?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

14. Specific small business goals are posted in the Draft RFP Section L, Small Business Participation (Subfactor) posted on February 4, 2005.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

15. What SDB percentage is expected?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

15. At this time the Small Disadvantaged Business (SDB) percentage is listed as 5%.   Specific small business goals are posted in the Draft RFP Section L, Small Business Participation (Subfactor).

QUESTION/COMMENT:

16. Will there be an SDB percentage specified for individual SDB subcategories? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

16. The Government is unsure of what is meant by “subcategories”.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

17. Will the government consider making this procurement a Small Business Set-Aside based upon the latest interested parties list (#8) that contains a substantial number of capable Small Businesses, the fact that many small businesses have been successful at NASA running projects of this size, and the results of a recent procurement at AMES where a small business rated higher than several large businesses?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

17.  The small business goals for the ISDSR acquisition were based on Historic Achievement,          Pro-Net Database Search, Sources Sought Synopsis, Capability statements received in response to the ISDSR sources sought, Requests for Information (RFI), and market surveys.  

QUESTION/COMMENT:

18. Will the Sample Task Order replies subsection be specifically page limited in the RFP as a subset of the technical volume page limit? This would allow the offerors to better understand the amount of detail NASA desires for evaluation purposes and will create a more consistent evaluation of the proposals. 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

18. The area entitled “Responses to Sample Tasks” is part of Volume I, Mission Suitability and will be included in the page limitation for the Volume I, Mission Suitability Proposal as listed in Clause L.7 PROPOSAL PAGE LIMITATIONS (NFS 1852.215-81) (FEB 1998)(ARC MODIFIED MARCH 2003).

QUESTION/COMMENT:

19. Will NASA be using the Evaluation Metrics as major criteria for the evaluation of the sample tasks? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

19. Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

20. Will the government add an indication of ‘desired’ but not required features related to each task order? This would allow each offeror to better analyze their capabilities and provide the government a solution that could be of much higher value than just meeting the basic requirements as stated in the task order.

(Explanation: Each offeror has a unique set of capabilities that the NASA can not provide individual guidance on which would be considered of the highest value during the procurement process. In some cases an offeror may have inherit capabilities that exceed the NASA’s requirements or expectation and would be offered if considered a desirable feature. The importance of this relates to the proposal evaluation process that requires an offeror to have at least one ‘significant strength’ to reach a score of ‘excellent’ in that area of the proposal.)

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

20. The sample task orders will not include ‘desired’ versus ‘required’ features. As task orders are issued to the selected Contractor, the Government expects to tap the Contractor’s expertise on the best way to proceed toward any requirement.
Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

21. Will a demonstration of the current capabilities related to the contract’s systems be provided to the offerors?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

21. No.  However, see APMS (http://apms.arc.nasa.gov/) and PDARS (http://pdars.arc.nasa.gov/) websites for insight into current tools and capabilities.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

22. Are there any whitepapers from NASA or the FAA related to the future of this system?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

22. Not at this time. Program planning is on-going.  See Highlights #4 and #5 for public information on DNFA and DNAA.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

23. There are specific requirements for foreign travel trip reports. Please confirm there are no reporting requirements for domestic travel. 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

23.  There are foreign travel trip report requirements as listed in the CTOs.  All travel will be documented as part of the monthly progress report as specified in the CTOs.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

24. There are facility requirements in the Statement of Work (SOW). Are these to be costed separately, or within one or more of the specific tasks (e.g., strategic partnering between NASA Ames and the contractor)?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

24. Facility requirements are for the contractor to provide a location proximate to Ames to complete work under all elements of the contract. This contract is off-site to Ames Research Center.  Reporting of costs are based upon the contractor’s accounting system.
QUESTION/COMMENT:

25. The statement of work refers to subject matter experts among air services providers (plural), meaning more than just the United States’ FAA. There are foreign travel reporting requirements. Has NASA already identified possible international users of the ISDSR as strategic partners?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

25. It is the Government’s expectation that airline and Air Traffic elements included in ISDSR would be U.S.-based.  The use of the term “air services providers” is intended to include, for example, air carriers (Federal Aviation Regulations Parts 121 and 135), charter, corporate, air traffic control, unions, et all in the US.  The ISDSR project does not expect to address international users as strategic partners at this time.

Task 1 - National Safety Data Source Development and Strategic Partnering 

Task Title: Survey Safety-relevant Aviation Data Sources

QUESTION/COMMENT:

26. What are the factors the government considers the most important related to the “quality of approach” to uncover data sources? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

26.  Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

27. To undercover new and useful sources of data, can a list of know and currently being utilized data sources be provided?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

27. See Draft SOW in the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

28. What is to be considered an individual data source? For example, is data of a specific type from one airline considered a data source or is it that data from a group of airlines considered a data source?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

28.  The “grain” size of a data source is determined by its owner.  A data source refers to the entity that owns the data not to individual types of data within firewalls of the data owner.  A group of airlines cannot be viewed as a single data source.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

29. What is the targeted scope of the data sources discovery and is there a priority related to types of data NASA desires (value of data)?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

29.  The targeted scope is any and all sources of data that could have information useful to gaining insight into the performance and safety of aviation operations.  

QUESTION/COMMENT:

30. Can NASA provide an example of the desired output of the discovery for one useful data source, this would allow for a better scoping of the effort?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

30. The Government does not intend to provide an example beyond the sample task order itself.  See the Objective Section of Sample Task #1 in the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005. 

QUESTION/COMMENT:

31. NASA has identified certain data sets as being “already well known such as flight-recorded data, radar-track data, Aviation Safety Reporting System (ASRS) and Airline Safety Action Program (ASAP) reports, and the National Airspace System Operational Monitoring Service (NAOMS) survey.”   Does NASA intend to provide the offerers with the nine data requirements for all the “well-known” sources or is the contractor expected to establish new relationships with existing sources as well as new, creative sources?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

31.  NASA does not understand what the contractor is asking.
QUESTION/COMMENT:

32. Is there an available, existing list of sources beyond the samples provided in the statement of work, and if so, will NASA provide the contact information of the owners of the data in advance of the release of the RFP or as an appendix to the RFP so that potential new sources sought and identified can be compared to existing information for completeness and currency?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

32.  There are no existing lists of sources beyond the samples provided in the draft statement of work posted on February 4, 2005.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

33. In essence, NASA is looking for a data source inventory of relevant data, databases, and access points. There is little difference between safety and safety incident/accident and a security incident. The difference is one of intent. Certain radar data relating to coverage is classified Secret. Will the ISDSR also contain classified information, invoking some DoD requirements at the SECRET level for information security?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

33.  ISDSR is a prototype and will not be expected to incorporate samples of every conceivable data source that might have relevant information.  ISDSR is focused on safety.  Virtually all samples of data included in ISDSR are proprietary.  The Government does not expect to access classified data under this requirement.  

QUESTION/COMMENT:

34. Contractor performance is based on uncovering data sources and establishing relationships.  Traditionally, NASA would negotiate access to these data sources.  For this RFP, will NASA negotiate access or is negotiating data access the responsibility of the contractor?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

34.  This is a joint endeavor.  However, the access will be granted to NASA.  The contractor will most likely be expected to enter into separate non-disclosure agreements, as described in the Draft SOW in the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

35. Please define and clarify NASA’s vision of strategic partnering under this RFP.

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

35.  “Strategic Partnering” with owners of data entails the common objectives of identifying systemic issues that could compromise safety while protecting proprietary trade-secret data.

Task 2 - Vulnerability Discovery from Distributed Safety Databases

Task Title: Vulnerability Discovery from Distributed Safety Databases

QUESTION/COMMENT:

36. What tools are currently being utilized related to analysis and data display that the NASA considers highly useful?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

36.  See the Draft SOW in the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005.
QUESTION/COMMENT:

37. What capabilities related to this task order are currently in place?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

37.  NASA currently has the capability to mine homogeneous digital and textual data in separate locations.  

QUESTION/COMMENT:

38. Can the government define the scope of an item considered an individual risk or provide an example? Specifically, could an event at an individual airport be elevated to a level of an ‘individual risk’ or does the term only apply to system wide occurrences?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

38.  The term ‘risk’ refers to the potential for an adverse event in the National Aviation System.  The term ‘individual risk’ relates to different categories of adverse events and does not necessarily relate to the scope or granularity of the item under consideration.  An event or incident encountered by a single aircraft at an individual airport could be an indicator of a systemic issue.  Such an event may be the “pointer” that initiates a query to other data sources for related information.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

39. What is the current priority related to risk detection and what is the scope related to either GA or security?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

39. Safety-risk detection is being addressed from a strategic perspective of proactive management.  General Aviation (GA) is of high interest.  See ISDSR sample tasks posted with the Draft RFP on February 4, 2005.
QUESTION/COMMENT:

40. What is the expectation related to risk discovery? Is the system supposed to be utilized to support the analysis of external resources, or is the contractor suppose to provide resources capable of theorizing risks and performing data analysis to validate, or discover possible sources of risk?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

40.  ISDSR is intended to develop tools to integrate information extracted from existing data sources for discovery of systemic issues.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

41. Decentralized analysis capabilities implies that there will be users external to the laboratory who will mine information and use visualization tools. This potentially impacts the architecture significantly and increases security costs.  Please describe NASA’s expectations on extending the existing ASMM capabilities to a community of subject matter experts outside of the laboratory. 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

41. ISDSR is a prototype of a system in which the data archive is distributed but the analysis for systemic issues is centralized.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

42. Is the contractor expected to provide the personnel for data mining and visualization to assist subject matter experts like NASDAC does, or are the subject matter experts expected to be able to be “on-line” and do their own vulnerability discovery connected to - but external to - the contractor’s laboratory?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

42. ISDSR is intended to develop tools to integrate information extracted from existing data sources for discovery of systemic vulnerabilities.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

43. Information trending is based on a history of information to search.   How far back before contract award is the window for capturing historical information? Can NASA describe the extent of archiving for which the data is considered valuable? Will NASA provide the offerors access to archived data for purposes of defining data mining strategies?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

43.  NASA has no archives of any data other than ASRS, which is already in the public domain.  Whatever other archives may exist are under the control of the owners of the data.  ISDSR as a prototype is expected to demonstrate the value of archiving data.

Task 3 - Secure Aviation Network

Task Title: Prototype Secure Aviation Network (SAN)

QUESTION/COMMENT:

44. Is the government utilizing the diverse nature of data sources involving both commercial and government organizations as an evaluation criteria where the offeror must demonstrate a capability to work in both environments?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

44.  Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

45. What are specific issues the government is aware of with regard to the establishment of this network related to requirements from the airlines’ technical organization or other participating entities?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

45.  The dominant issues are assurance of secure access and protection of proprietary data.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

46. How does NASA wish us to respond to this task order? Does the offeror need to fully design the required network, systems, and processes related to this task order as part of the proposal effort or a detailed analysis of the issues and the most likely solutions to those issues? A detailed initial design is possible, but will require substantial additional information?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

46.  Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

47. What is the level of current documentation related to database structures, analysis process, and designs that is available?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

47. This varies greatly by data source.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

48. What has been the top three issues related to data access?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

48. Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

49. A year’s worth of radar track data is measured in the terabytes for the United States. Does NASA intend to retain data for analysis for a specified period of time or does the archive start with the award of the contract and expand on a year-to-year basis? 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

49. NASA has no archives of any data other than ASRS, which is already in the public domain.  Whatever other archives may exist are under the control of the owners of the data.  PDARS, which stores, analyzes, and archives radar track data, is under the control of the FAA. ISDSR as a prototype is expected to demonstrate the value of archiving data.  Data collection for the DNAA and DNFA start with the award of the ISDSR contract and maintain no more than 2 years of data.
QUESTION/COMMENT:

50. This task has been identified as a candidate for small and disadvantaged businesses. Can NASA accept a public network and databases or shall the network and data mines be within the NASA realm of responsibility? In other words, can a service provider provide the information or must it reside with the ISDSR contractor?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

50.  Note: The Government has not made any statement to the fact that this or any other ISDSR task has been identified as a candidate for small and disadvantaged businesses. 
All data are proprietary.  
Security concerns dictate creation of a private network.

Task 4 - Automated Evidence-Gathering Across Data Sources

Task Title: Automated Evidence Acquisition

QUESTION/COMMENT:

51. (Suggestion – The use of the word ‘evidence’ might be reconsidered as that has a connotation related to prosecution, which is not perceived to be the purpose of this system.)

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

51.  A dictionary definition of evidence is “The data on which a conclusion or judgment may be based.”
QUESTION/COMMENT:

52. Is the contractor to provide analysis capabilities related to aviation or merely toolsets to perform this analysis?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

52.  Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

53. What is the anticipated number of users related to the system? Those performing active analysis verses those merely receiving information?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

53. ISDSR is intended to develop tools to integrate information extracted from existing data sources for discovery of systemic vulnerabilities. ISDSR is a prototype of a system in which the data archive is distributed but the analysis for systemic issues is centralized.  As such, initially, the number of direct users of the analysis tools will be small.  But, as the prototype approaches implementation users become distributed across the data sources.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

54. Is there an example of the desired output related to the data collection scenario in this task-order?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

54.  Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

55. What types of ‘analysis’ should the gathered data formats support?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

55.  Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

56. When can the contractor expect to receive the two different issues of interest selected by the NASA management team (COTR and element managers)? Is this a possible RFP discriminator on how the offeror would approach examining NASA issues of interest?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

56.  Please review Section L and Section M of the Draft RFP posted on February 4, 2005, carefully to understand what the Government will evaluate and how the evaluation will be conducted.  
QUESTION/COMMENT:

57. If issues of interest are provided as sample problems in the RFP, the overall architecture and approach for ISDSR can be tested against NASA’s contract objectives. 

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

57. See Government Response to #56.

QUESTION/COMMENT:

58. Is this tool for extraction based on a query by a subject matter expert, or is the tool expected to extract automatically based on trending data thresholds (e.g., three missed approaches at Miami International Airport within one week on Runway 27)?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

58.  See Government Response to #56.
QUESTION/COMMENT:

59. The implication of “The Contractor shall implement demonstrated capabilities in the larger ISDSR system” would mean that this tool(s) comes later in the development cycle of ISDSR. Can NASA provide a schedule of timing for the different tasks for planning the response to the RFP?

GOVERNMENT RESPONSE:

59.  ISDSR is a new requirement.  . The sample tasks are indicative of where new capabilities are required.
